# PARTNERSHIP AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

## Minutes of the hybrid meeting held on 14 January 2025

PRESENT: Councillor Gwilym O Jones (Vice-Chair in the Chair) Councillors Non Dafydd, Jeff M Evans, John Ifan Jones, Euryn Morris, Pip O'Neill, Derek Owen, Ken Taylor and Sonia Williams and Sonia Williams IN ATTENDANCE: Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive, Director of Social Services, Head of Adults' Services, Executive Manager (Leadership Team) (SOJ) (item 4 only), Service Manager (Safeguarding & Practice Quality) (SP) (item 5 only), Scrutiny Manager, Scrutiny Officer (EA), Committee Officer (MEH), Webcasting Committee Services Officer (FT). **APOLOGIES:** Councillor Dylan Rees and Councillor Margaret Murley Roberts Mrs Wenda Owen – The Church in Wales, Mrs Gillian Thompson - Parent Governor - Primary Schools Sector. Mr John Tierney – The Roman Catholic Church. Councillor Robin Williams – Deputy Leader and Portfolio Member for Finance and Housing Services. Head of Democracy. ALSO PRESENT: **Portfolio Members** Councillor Neville Evans – Portfolio Member for Leisure, Tourism & Maritime: Councillor Carwyn Jones - Portfolio Member for Corporate & Customer Experience; Councillor Dyfed W Jones – Portfolio Member for Children, Young People & Families; Councillor Gary Pritchard - Leader of the Council and Portfolio Member for Economic Development; Councillor Alun Roberts - Portfolio Member for Adults' Services & Community Safety: Councillor Dafydd Roberts - Portfolio Member for Education and

> the Welsh Language, Councillor Nicola Roberts – Portfolio Member for Planning, Public Protection & Climate Change; Councillor Dafydd R Thomas –

Portfolio Member for Highways, Property & Waste;

Chief Officer – Medrwn Môn (item 4 only)

In the absence of the Chair, Councillor Gwilym O Jones the Vice-Chair chaired the meeting. Councillor Sonia Williams was appointed Vice-Chair for this meeting only.

### 1 APOLOGIES

As noted above.

### 2 DECLARATION OF INTEREST

None received.

#### 3 MINUTES

The minutes of the following meetings were confirmed as correct:-

- Minutes of the special meeting held on 13 November, 2024.
- Minutes of the meeting held on 20 November, 2024.

#### Arising thereon:-

#### Item 3 – Gwynedd & Ynys Môn Community Safety Partnership Annual Report – 2023/2024

It was noted that progress has been made following the recommendation to request that the Executive seeks an update from the Regional Group, led by the Health Board, on the work and discussions regarding the prevention of suicides.

#### Minutes of the meeting held on 12 September 2024 – Item 5 – Môn Communities Forward

Reference was made to the matter raised at the meeting held on 12 September 2024 that Officers in collaboration with Môn CF to investigate whether there are individuals in communities where the bus service has been withdrawn who would benefit from Môn CF's driving programme. It was noted that the matter has received attention by Medrwn Môn.

#### 4 STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS - MEDRWN MÔN

The Chair welcomed Lyndsey Campbell-Williams, Chief Officer of Medrwn Môn to the meeting.

The Leader and Portfolio Member for Economic Development said that Medrwn Môn is one of 19 Community Voluntary Council's (CVC's) funded across Wales to support community groups and voluntary organisations. He noted that Medrwn Môn is a strategic third partner organisations with this Authority and their main aim is to help and promote volunteers and to support community organisations across the Island. Medrwn Môn also supports the Council as regard to 'Place-Shaping', 'Local Alliances', Transport Plans within Communities together with the 'Age-Friendly' Island. He further noted that Medrwn Môn leads on the poverty prevention plan in partnership with the local authority.

The Chief Officer of Medrwn Môn said that Medrwn Môn is an independent agency providing support and advice to voluntary organisations and community groups enabling them to work more effectively. She said that Medrwn Môn is funded through Welsh Government towards their core work. The current funding arrangements will cease on 31st March, 2025; work has been undertaken to establish a business plan across the 19 CVCs for funding for a two-year period 2025/2027. She highlighted that the focus and concerns of community groups is to secure sustainable funding to enable them to fund activities within their communities. 11 Community Groups were supported in 2023/2024 to secure funding of £353,000 from large funding organisations i.e. National Lottery, WCVAs and Welsh Government. Medrwn Môn supported 84 further groups which totalled over £200,000 which included working in partnership with the County Council to secure the Youth Volunteering grant, Warm Spaces Grant, Autumn Activities and Place Shaping funding. She further said that Medrwn Môn has been offering free training sessions which has seen a high percentage of people taking advantage of these sessions. It was noted that £1.9m has been secured through the support of Medrwn Môn by Community Groups through large funding organisations and £313k has been distributed from key funds i.e. SPF funding towards supporting Community Alliances. She said that restructuring of the core staff within Medrwn Môn has been undertaken to support Community Alliances. She referred to the volunteer services provided by Medrwn Môn i.e. Carlink, Good Turns Scheme, Technology & Care, Môn Community Link. She expressed that the working relationship between Medrwn Môn and the County Council is one of the best across the CVCs in Wales.

The following were points of discussion by the committee -

- Questions were raised as to what the most important elements of the work are undertaken by Medrwn Môn within regards to the context of poverty. The Chief Officer of Medrwn Môn responded that the main challenges is to secure core funding to support community groups to afford activities within the communities and to be sustainable in the long term.
- Questions were raised as to what changes has there been in the demand for the type of support individuals and local voluntary organisations need and whether it is anticipated that the demand will increase over the next few years. The Chief Officer responded that staff restructuring has been undertaken to address the demand for core services from Medrwn Môn. She noted that the cost-of-living crises has impacted on community facilities aswell as individuals and there has been discussions as to the sustainability of some community facilities and whether there is a need to merge some groups afforded within communities.

She further said that following the pandemic there has been an increase in demand for core project work afforded by Medrwn Môn.

- Reference was made that during the pandemic some of the community groups ceased. Questions were raised as to whether statistics have been retained as to how many of these groups ceased and how many have continued i.e. one year to five years. The Chief Officer responded that Medrwn Môn has a data base that shows the trends and reasons as to why some different groups have cease and have been struggling and core staff are able to access the data base to target and channelling resources to address the needs of certain communities. The Leader said that any voluntary sector organisation has challenges in securing funding and sustaining and attracting the required volunteers to support the activities offered.
- Questions were raised was to what else could be achieved if resources were available and whether all the Community Alliances will continue in the future. The Chief Officer responded that core funding is essential to be able to support community groups; the retention of staff is key in enabling to support these groups and the impact of the support given to increase the facilities afforded and to work efficiently to create sustainable communities.
- Questions were raised whether the LACs within the Island are sustainable and whether there is collaboration with Elected Members. The Chief Officer responded that that there are four LAC's established on the Island which are linked into the Community Alliances in the area. She noted that the vision for the future is that these LACs will be able to more ingrained into their communities and this will be integrated into the next three year development plan.
- Questions were raised as to where collaboration with the County Council and other organisations can improve. The Chief Officer responded that the working relationship between Medrwn Môn and the Authority has exited for over twelve years. She gave examples of collaboration working in different areas of the Island and within the services within the County Council.
- Questions were raised as to how Elected Members can support the work of Medrwn Môn as a voluntary sector organisation. The Chief Officer responded that the main point of contact with the Elected Members is through the Community Alliances. She noted that Medrwn Môn is one of the only CVCs that will work with Elected Members and Town and Community Councils offering support and training. She further said that Medrwn Môn is willing to support and assist any local projects within the communities that the Elected Members consider that would be of assistance.
- Questions were raised whether there is adequate sharing of information as regards to rural transport schemes. The Chief Officer responded that collaboration working with the Highways Department has only recently been undertaken and statistics have now been shared to inform where the public services are delivering and how often the bus services are used. She noted that Medrwn Môn have funded a feasibility study to inform the Community Alliances where community transport needs to be addressed on the Island. Short-term and long-term outcomes will be discussed between the Council and the funding avenues that will need to address the community transport needs within communities and sharing amenities with other Community Alliances. The Chief Executive said that whilst the use of social media is a platform for sharing information within communities, however, there are people who do not use social

media or have access to social media needs to be considered and the role of Community Alliances is important to share information with residents.

- Reference was made to the North Wales Economic Ambition Boards Regional consultation as regards to the Transport Scheme. Questions were raised whether Medrwn Môn is part of the discussions as regards to the Regional Transport Scheme. The Chief Officer responded that discussions as regards to the community transport needs feasibility study undertaken by Medrwn Môn will be incorporated into the Regional Transport Scheme. Further questions were raised as to whether Medrwn Môn will be sharing information as regards to the consultation by the North Wales Economic Ambition Board with people who do not have access to the social media platform or are unable to visit community hubs and libraries to be able to respond to the consultation. The Chief Officer responded that focus group sessions will be conducted to inform people of the Transport Scheme consultation and Medrwn Môn will report the views back to Ambition Board thereafter.
- Further questions were raised as to whether there are problems in recruiting volunteers. The Chief Officer responded that Benllech and the Seiriol area has the most volunteering capacity on the Island. However, only two volunteers are available as regards to the Car-link scheme run by Medrwn Môn which can be a challenge.

The Chair thanked the Chief Officer of Medrwn Môn for her presentation to the meeting.

It was RESOLVED to note the presentation to the Committee by Medrwn Môn.

#### 5 CORPORATE SAFEGUARDING

The report of the Director of Social Services was presented for consideration by the Committee.

The Portfolio Member for Children, Young People & Families said that Safeguarding is everyone's responsibility. All the Authority's Services and employees, regardless of their role, have a responsibility to safeguard people. He referred to the data within the report which highlighted the number of staff who have completed mandatory safeguarding training during 2023/2024. He further said that a new Action Plan will be introduced together with a review of the Corporate Safeguarding Policy and the Training Plan which will be undertaken in Q4.

The Director of Social Services reported that the report highlights the County Council's responsibility to ensure that staff, volunteers and contractors are aware of safeguarding in their day-to-day work for the Council and know how to raise concerns. A review of the Corporate Safeguarding Plan has been undertaken which will be published on 1<sup>st</sup> April, 2025. The Council will continue to ensure that effective practice, that includes setting clear and effective standards and robust contract compliance requirements with all external providers of services to the public.

In considering the report, the Committee discussed the following main matters-

- Questions were raised as to the role of the Deputy Chief Executive as the antislavery champion. The Deputy Chief Executive responded that he is a member of the joint Community Safety Board with Gwynedd Council which encompasses attending regional meetings with the Chief Executive attending national safeguarding meetings. The Director of Social Services said that there are several wide-ranging areas as regards to safeguarding (i.e. modern slavery, prevent, violence against women and girls) with different Officers from the Council attending different meetings. He noted that there is a need to ensure that the appropriate Officers attend these meetings and to share information thereafter.
- Reference was made within the report that the Director of Social Services has
  recently visited each Service across the Council to promote how safeguarding
  encompasses every service within the Council. Questions were raised as to
  level of seniority these visits were undertaken. The Director of Social Services
  responded that he has a statutory responsibility as Director of Social Services to
  ensure that people are aware and understand the meaning of Corporate
  Safeguarding. He said that he attended meetings of Senior Managers, grade 8
  and above, to highlight safeguarding issues and to gauge the requirements of
  specific services. He referred to 'Teulu Môn' which is the first point of contact for
  social care services that takes a family-based approach to early intervention and
  prevention. He noted that any person can contact 'Teulu Môn' to report any
  issues of concerns.
- Questions were raised as to what assurances can be given that the Local Authority is meeting its Corporate Safeguarding obligations. The Director of Social Services responded that there are strong policies and procedures in place which have been embedded into the services of the Council, staff also access regular training, however, there is always a risk that a child or adult can be abused.
- Reference was made that the report refers to a review of safeguarding training needed to be undertaken by School Governors. The Director of Social Services responded that it is considered that safeguarding training needs to the strengthened with School Governors and to remind them of the 'Teulu Môn' provision. The Chief Executive said that a Training Plan for 2025/2026 has been established for Elected Members and members can request areas of additional training needs through their Group Leaders.
- Questions were raised as to how the Council will ensure that local businesses and services actively participate in sharing information and developing interventions to support corporate safeguarding as is outlined within the report as it is considered that these establishments are in a unique position to spot the signs of exploitation and other forms of abuse. The Director of Social Services responded that the appropriate wording as regards to safeguarding has been agreed and training will also be afforded to these establishments i.e. hotels, restaurants, takeaways, off-licences, taxi drivers, B&B's, cinemas or other licenced premises which may come with children and adults at risk of harm. The provision of 'Teulu Môn' is also highlighted as an avenue to report any concerns and 'Teulu Môn' attend several community events and schools to raise awareness of safeguarding. He further said that the Councils' contracts now include a paragraph highlighting the need for all contractors to adhere to Safeguarding policies.

- Questions were raised as to what measures are in place to ensure full compliance with Corporate Safeguarding training arrangements and how is it monitored. The Director of Social Services responded that the data of the number of staff who have completed the five mandatory safeguarding training provisions afforded is noted within the report. He referred that the data highlights the need for improvement in schools which is not necessarily targeted at teachers only but all the supporting staff in the day-to-day running of the schools. Training will be afforded within schools for those requiring safeguarding training but due to the 'turn-over' of staff it can be difficult to target all the staff in the schools. Further questions were raised whether there is a need to afford refresher course every two years rather than the current requirement of four years. The Deputy Chief Executive responded that the Education Service and schools follow the Welsh Government guidelines as regards to safeguarding training of four years. However, the schools prepare a list of training opportunities for individuals on the Governing bodies, but it is up to those on the Governors to take advantage of the opportunities afforded for training. He further said that apart from the data listed within the report the schools have their own data as regards to safeguarding training attendance. The Chief Executive said that there has been considerable work undertaken to improve the statistics over the last three years by the Human Resources Department. The training afforded needs to be available to all staff members within the schools which can be a challenge whilst the staff need to carry out their day-to-day work.
- Questions were raised as to whether the mandatory safeguarding training data, as is reported within the report, should exclude schools as they have their own data analysis as the number of staff attending mandatory training is lower than other services. Reference was also made that the cyber security awareness course attended by schools were much lower than other services. The Director of Social Services said that the safeguarding training data submitted is for 2023/2024 and it must be recognised that school staff are part of the corporate staffing of the Authority and are also part of the key safeguarding procedures. He noted that there are processes in place to improve the data within schools. The Deputy Chief Executive said that a Members Briefing Session can be arranged to inform Elected Members of the school's contribution towards the Corporate Safeguarding arrangements.
- Reference was made that the data on mandatory safeguarding training completed by Elected Members should be included within the training data.
- Reference was made to the increase in home-schooling and questions were raised whether the Council is monitoring and attending the homes of these children and whether there are adequate workforce resources within the Council to carry out home visits. As Chair of the Education Scrutiny Panel, Councillor Gwilym O Jones said that the Panel receives regular reports and scrutinise home-schooling, and the Education Officers visits the home of children who receive home-schooling. He noted that there is close collaboration between the Education and Social Services Departments as regards to home-schooling. The Director of Social Services responded that information is shared between both the Education and Social Services Departments, and he assured that there is adequate workforce in the Social Services Department as regards to Social Workers. However, he said that the legislation does not allow to forcefully attend a child's home who receives home-schooling. He further said that both the Learning and Children's and Families Services responded to the Welsh

Governments consultation on home-schooling. The Authority would prefer to see a Teacher and Social Work meeting the family of a child intending/receiving home-schooling, but the recommendation was not accepted by Welsh Government. He said that this is continued to be raised with Welsh Government as the number of home-schooled children is increasing across Wales. The Deputy Chief Executive said that a Members Briefing Session was undertaken recently as regards to home-schooling. He noted that there are national guidelines and requirements as regards to home-schooling. An Officer has been appointed within the Learning Services whose role incorporates home-schooling and the Officer and Teacher visits the home of the family who register their child for home-schooling and arranges schooling sessions and a yearly session on safeguarding is afforded which complies with national requirements.

- Questions were as to what strategies will be used to ensure comprehensive responses when consulting with children and young people, to understand their experiences in a child-centred approach to safeguarding. The Director of Social Services responded that there are processes in place to support children as they spend most of their day in school. It was noted that schools are able to approach 'Teulu-Môn' to express any concerns for a child. He noted that he and the Safeguarding Manager are part of the Headteachers Forum which enable them to share experiences and concerns as regards to safeguarding. He further referred that some children might not be comfortable in sharing experiences with a teacher but would be willing to speak to a Youth Worker or if they have an Advocate. He noted there are different forums that enables children and young people to express their concerns and Barnardo's and NSPCC have helplines available. The Deputy Chief Executive said that a Counselling provision is afforded within the Learning Service and every school on Anglesey has completed the Trauma Informed Training to date. He further said that the cyber security will also be considered.
- Questions were raised as to whether contacting 'Teulu-Môn' can be anonymous. The Director of Social Services responded that the role of 'Teulu-Môn' is to offer advice and assistance and take referrals where appropriate. We like to think that all professionals would be willing to share their concerns with a family (where appropriate) before calling Teulu Môn so that we are transparent with the families we work with. He noted that there is a danger that people will report an incident anonymously which are untrue, and evidence is required to support the concerns of an individual. Further questions were raised as to how long it takes to respond to an issue of concern. The Director of Social Services responded that the respond does vary regarding different cases. Firstly, the Police is contacted, and joint decisions are undertaken. He noted that if an emergency arises it is the Police that take the leading role and Social Services staff will also attend.
- Questions were raised as to whether safeguarding issues are discussed within the Social Services Scrutiny Panel as is undertaken within the Education Scrutiny Panel. The Chief Executive suggested that in the future the Education Scrutiny Panel and the Social Services Scrutiny Panel could discuss the work of scrutinising the Corporate Safeguarding reports. The Chairs of both Panels thereafter can report back to the Chairs/Vice-Chairs Scrutiny Forms before they are presented to the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee.

It was RESOLVED that following examining the information shared and reviewing developments over the past 9 months, it was agreed that the Council is fully meeting its Corporate Safeguarding obligations.

## ACTIONS :

- The Chairs / Vice Chairs Scrutiny Forum be invited to consider the contribution of the Education Scrutiny Panel and the Social Services Scrutiny Panel to the work of scrutinising Corporate Safeguarding reports before they are presented to the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee. [Scrutiny Manager to action].
- To ensure that both Elected Members and staff prioritise attendance at mandatory training on cyber security. [Head of Democracy Elected Members; All Heads of Service staff].
- That arrangements be made for a presentation to a Member's Briefing Session on the contribution of schools to the Authority's Corporate Safeguarding arrangements. [Director of Education, Skills and Young People].
- To consider the structure of future Corporate Safeguarding reports in the future, and specifically the priority of including separate information on safeguarding arrangements in schools. [Director of Social Services].

## 6 COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2024/2025

The report of the Scrutiny Manager setting out the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee's indicative Forward Work Programme for 2024/2025 was presented for consideration.

#### It was RESOLVED to:-

- Agree the current version of the forward work programme for 2024/2025.
- Note progress made thus far in implementing the forward work programme.

The meeting concluded at 4.10 pm

COUNCILLOR GWILYM O JONES VICE-CHAIR IN THE CHAIR